
CITY OF OVERBROOK

MINUTES REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 25, 2003

MEMBERS PRESENT:

OTHERS PRESENT:

Ira Allen, Jim Gates, Rich Hamit, David Gerisch, Mayor
Jack Young. Bruce Smith absent.

Mike Fawl, Frank Rhodes, Max Friesen, Pat Martin, Ed
Harmison, Everette Dannar, Mark Tomlinson, Bob Call,
Cheryl Brown

Mayor Young called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Roll call by the clerk established
the presence of a quorum.

MINUTES/ WARRANTS: After discussion about the wording of the previous law report,
Rich Hamit made a motion to approve the minutes of the June 11th meeting as written. Jim Gates
seconded; motion carried 4-0.

Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to pay the warrants presented. Motion
carried 4-0.

WATER CONCERNS: Pat Martin, as owner of the laundromat, came before the council to ask
if something could be done to offset their losses due to the recent rusty water. She told the
council that they had to drain the water heater several times, and run each washer through
several cycles which will cost them extra money, even though they lost several days of income.
After a brief discussion, Jim Gates made a motion to adjust the water bill by deducting $75.00 on
the next billing. Rich Hamit seconded; motion carried 4-0.

Martin also stated her concern about the kids riding bicycles on the sidewalk in front of
the laundromat again. She said the "No bicycle riding" sign is no longer there. The council
agreed by concensus to have the sign replaced, and more added if necessary. The danger of kids
riding their bikes on the street in the business district was discussed. The clerk said that the
ordinance prohibits the bikes being ridden on the sidewalk, but the bikes can be walked.

REAL ESTATE MATTERS: Mike Fawl said that he and Frank Rhodes have come back to the

council to see how they should proceed with an earlier proposal. Ira Allen asked if they have
thought about a pharmacy and another business, in addition to a pharmacy and doctor. Fawl
said they had not considered this combination. The council asked them to postpone any
decisions until after the August 1st deadline. Fawl and Rhodes agreed to this as they aren't
working under any particular timeframe.

PROPERTY SAFETY: Ed Harmison reported that he had contacted Pat Neil, Jr in regards to
coming to this meeting, but he has yet to make an appearance.

RESOLUTION: Cheryl Brown presented the council with a resolution that asks the Director of
Accounts and Reports to waive certain requirements of accounting in order to have the audit
prepared as usual. This has been requested by Bogner & Long who audit the city's financial
reports each year. After discussion, Ira Allen made a motion, seconded by David Gerisch, to pass
Resolution No 50. Motion carried 4-0.

STREET LIGHT REPLACEMENT: After discussion regarding the cost and performance of
the different bulbs for street lights, Jim Gates made a motion to replace street lights with the
Metal Halide lamps. Motion died for lack of a second. Rich Hamit made a motion, seconded by
Jim Gates, to use the High Pressure Sodium lamps as replacements are needed. Motion carried
4-0. The sodium bulbs put off an amber light rather than a bright white light, but are more



economicaL This choice can be changed in the future if the sodium lights prove to be
unsatisfactory.

The clerk said that a new schedule for water/wastewater training has been received by
the city, so Bob Call can make plans for his testing.

Brown reported that she is still waiting for an opinion from the city attorney regarding
the current boundary ordinance.

CURFEW ORDINANCE: The present curfew ordinance was reviewed, with possible
changes being tabled until more information from the city attorney is available.

GRANT WORKSHOPS: Mayor Young said that he found a website with information on grant
workshops regarding Planning/Comprehensive Plans. The mayor said he has talked with
someone who has prepared comprehensive plans, and he recommends that the city pursue
having one prepared by a professionaL The clerk was asked to see if one can be borrowed from
another city, and to get information on who is available to prepare it.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Rich Hamit made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to recess the
meeting to discuss matters not related to elected personnel. Motion carried; meeting was
recessed from 7:40 PM. The mayor opened the meeting at 7:50 PM. Mayor Young told the
council that he has been thinking about a person to replace Max Friesen as City Treasurer when
he retires. He has talked to Patty Hylton, and would like to have the council's approval for
pursuing the matter. Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to approve paying the
treasurer $75/ month, with the understanding that this would include attending necessary council
meetings and other requirements of the position. Motion carried 4-0.

LAW REPORT: Chief Ed Harmison said that he had told Pat Neil, Jr that the council wanted
him to attend tonight's meeting, but Neil hasn't arrived yet.

Harmison met with Roger Harmon and walked the Trail to discuss what needs to be
done. They agree that two drainage tubes will be needed, and that it will take a bulldozer to do
the preliminary skimming of the actual path. Harmon is going to talk to some people who may
help with the project.

Harmison told the council that Mark Tomlinson can be authorized to issue citations

regarding animal control and the city lake and still be paid from the General Fund as he is now.
Dannar's patrol car has had four new tires put on, but WrenchBenders has agreed to bill

them in two different months. Harmison said his car needs new tires, but will wait awhile.
Harmison reported that Tomlinson spotted someone attempting to dump a load of

lumber at the tree/limbs dump and got ahold of Dannar to stop them. Dannar told the council
that most people think it's okay to dump things that can be burned. The council agreed by
concensus to have Bob Call order some more signs to make it clear that only trees/limbs/leaves
are to be dumped there.

Chief Harmison also said that the goat has been removed from the city, and also the junk
vehicle is no longer in the alley behind the Bob Clark residence. He also said that the library
celebration street dance went well.

Harmison asked if the council was going to discuss employee raises this month. The
clerk stated that the council had decided to postpone the matter until the 2004 budget is
prepared. The mayor asked that the council plan a working meeting to work on the budget
before the last meeting in July. Ira Allen recommends each department determine what is needed
to fund it, and then the auditor can use these figures to determine the mills that have to be levied.
There was discussion about why raises have been set in June in previous years. The clerk said
that this has been done since she started here in 1988, and doesn't know why.

The clerk also reported that the co-pay for doctor office visits does not apply to the
deductible. The council didn't realize that this was changed in the current policy. Harmison said



that he has spent about $105 out of pocket so far this year. Reimbursement for co-pay was tabled
until the next meeting. Jim Gates recommended visiting with Blue Cross Blue Shield about this
change in the policy.

Harmison asked the council how they wanted him to proceed with the Pat Neil, Jr
property complaint. The council agreed by concensus to give him another chance to attend the
next council meeting and issue a citation if he doesn't attend.

MAINTENANCE REPORT: Bob Call told the council that the recent problems with dirty
water was partly a result of not having valves and bleeders in the right places. He has no way to
flush water in a couple of sections of line coming from the wells to town. Call didn't have prices
to install them, but thought that it could be included with the waterline project loan. The council
agreed by concensus to approve installing two valves and bleeders at a cost of up to $1600. This
will be added to the waterline loan if possible.

Call said he has gotten the meters read, replaced 7 old meters, did some repairs on the
library roof, and repaired the water service at the Boy Scout building. Jim Gates asked about
using Mark Tomlinson to help mow at the city lake. Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Ira
Allen, to approve Tomlinson to mow at the lake - approximately 10 hours- at $6.00jhr. Motion
carried 4-0.

Call asked if it was necessary to continue using the timesheets. Rich Hamit said that
there was a purpose for using the timesheets, and didn't want to see them completely abandoned.
The mayor said that he felt the most important thing is to have a record of overtime and why it
was necessary. The council agreed by concensus to consider revisions, but not stop doing it
altogether. Tomlinson said he would bring the form that Osage City uses. Allen recommended
that the employee sign the timesheet, and that an explanation be provided for overtime.

Harmison said that it's not always possible for him to balance his duty hours to avoid
having any overtime and still provide adequate coverage during the daytime. The council told
him that they want him to continue as he has been. Harmison said that the overtime issue has to
addressed in the next budget.

COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS: Rich Hamit said that he has been contacted by Dax
Mayes who's doing the grant survey. Hamit said it took about 30 seconds to complete it. Hamit
said that he felt the meeting with Sprint personnel regarding their DSL service. Cheryl Brown
said she is going to get more information, but would like to have it since businesses can have up
to 5 devices on one service, which would be very good for both the police department and city
hall. Dannar said the police department has been thinking that they need a private fax line for
sensitive material. Brown said she would try to have the information at the next meeting. The
clerk said that Sprint uses EarthLink for internetj email so there would be some changes in that
regard.

MAYOR'S REPORT: Mayor Young advised the city employees that they are not to use city
equipment for personal use.

MISe: Mark Tomlinson said that he thinks the city should get another set of blades for the new
mower. He thought they would cost about $50. Bob Call said that they have never been



sharpened, but thought that the mower was bought just for the ball diamonds. The council
agreed by concensus to purchase another set of blades.

There being no further business before the council, Jim Gates made a motion, seconded
by David Gerisch, to adjourn. Motion carried 4-0; meeting was adjourned at 9:00 PM.

Submitted By:
Cheryl L. Brown, City Clerk

APPROVED: _



CITY OF OVERBROOK

MINUTES REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING JUNE 11, 2003

MEMBERS PRESENT:

OTHERS PRESENT:

Jim Gates, Ira Allen, David Gerisch (7:05), Rich Hamit (7:06),
Mayor Jack Young. Bruce Smith absent.

Donna Crawford, Mike Fawl, Frank Rhodes, Marian Massoth,
Roger Harmon, Bob Call, Ed Harmison, Everette Dannar, Mark
Tomlinson, Cheryl Brown.

The meeting was called to order at 7:05 pm by Mayor Young. Roll was called by the
clerk.

MINUTES: Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by David Gerisch, to approve the minutes of
the previous meeting with spelling changes. Motion carried 4-0.

WARRANTS: Jim Gates moved to pay warrants that were presented. Ira Allen seconded;
motion carried 4-0.

GRANT SURVEY: Donna Crawford, Governmental Assistance Services, was present to
discuss the schedule for doing the survey that's required to determine the percentage of
low-to-moderate income that's necessary to qualify for grants. Crawford told the council that
this will start on Monday, June 23rd, and will be done by Dax Mayes. Crawford explained that
she will have a notice published in the Osage County Chronicle explaining the surveying process,
and will send a flyer to be displayed around town. She told the council that Mayes will be
carrying business cards, and that they don't go door-to-door after dark. Crawford also explained
that they will continue the surveying until the required percentage of returns have been acquired,
up until the grant turn-in date if necessary. The council thanked her for coming.

REAL ESTATE MATTERS: Mike Faw I and Frank Rhodes were present to discuss matters
related to the medical clinic's closing. Fawl said that he has visited with the business manager,
and has concluded that their bottom line is making a profit. He also talked to the Osage County
attorney regarding the possibility of waiving county taxes. The council agreed by concensus that
any further action be delayed until after the next community meeting on June 17, 2003. The clinic
management is supposed to attend the meeting. Providing another source of medical care for thE
community was discussed, including someone just out of medical school. Fawl stated that this is
agreeable to them as they are not trying to push things forward, but are interested in helping.

MISe: The sewer hook-up inspection was tabled due to the absence of Bruce Smith.
David Gerisch reported the fees charged by several other cities for new water meter connections.
They range from $200 to $850. Overbrook is currently charging $500 for new water meters, $50
for a new sewer connection, and a $2 inspection fee. After discussion, Ira Allen made a motion,
seconded by Rich Hamit, to raise the sewer connection fee to $100 and leave the meter charge as
is. Motion carried 4-0.

Jim Gates said that he hasn't had any complaints about the restrooms at Jones Park, and
Bob Call reported that they seemed to be clean the past few times he's checked them.

The city attorney hasn't sent any information about updating the boundary ordinance as
yet.



SALARY REVIEW: The clerk explained that this was put on the agenda as it's traditionally
been done in June. The council agreed to postpone this discussion until after the 2004 budget is
set. Chief Harmison asked why this was being done. The mayor explained that the 2003 salaries
are funded by the current budget, and future raises need to be addressed when preparing the
2004 budget. Mayor Young stated that the council needs to be thinking about the new budget.
Ira Allen said that he would like the council to determine what it's going to cost to run the city
next year, and require the necessary mill levy to provide the services. There will be a public
hearing before the budget is approved, so people will have a chance to voice their opinions to
help the council know what services they want and don't want. Harmison stated that the police
department has never had enough revenue to last the whole year for as long as he can remember.
Ira Allen said Harmison has given him the figures necessary to run the police department when
the 2004 budget is prepared. Harmison then said that based on a population of approximately
1,000, one cent per person per hour would generate $87,000 annually for the police department.
He also pointed out all the different aspects of police coverage that most people are not aware of
to justify adequate funding, even if it means an increased mill levy. He also reminded the council
that Overbrook has the lowest mill levy in the county. Mayor Young said that the Overbrook
budget needs to be figured on what it takes to run our city, regardless of what other towns do.
The mayor stated that's why he feels raises should be considered after the budget is ready. The
council agreed that the raises would be retroactive if the matter is tabled. There was discussion
about the "expenditure" levels that are put into the budget. The clerk explained that there has to
be a stated limit as to what can be spent to avoid repeating the budget hearing, adoption, etc.
The mayor stated that while he doesn't want to pay more taxes, he thinks that the city shouldn't
have to just" get by", but should be made better whatever it takes.

LAW REPORT: Chief Ed Harmison reviewed his written report for the council, including other
agencies assisted by city officers. He stated that two citations have been issued regarding the city
lake. Harmison also presented information about what other towns are charging for various
fines. Rich Hamit reminded the council that the judge sets the fines, and Harmison said he has
asked that they be raised several times in the past. Harmison said that he, Dannar, and Miller
will be going to Osage City to qualify on the firing range. He also said that he's considering
authorizing Mark Tomlinson to issue tickets at the city lake, but only if his salary would continue
to be funded from the General Fund, and not Law. He's also going to check with the law
enforcement training academy regarding the matter. Harmison also gave the council some
details about a recent bomb threat in the community. It turned out to be a problem with the
anti-theft device on the car. Harmison also had questions about the amount he's having to pay
for each doctor's visit. He also had questions about the amount of money bequeathed to the city
by Pearl Stitt. The clerk said she remembered a donation that was made several years ago to be
used for the poolj recreation. Harmison told the council that he's pleased that they are being
realistic about the budget.

WATERjSEWER REPORT: Marian Massoth reported that the new water line has been
chlorinated and cleaned Opening the new lines caused a lot of air in the water, but that should
clear up soon. She also said that the city needs to get another chlorine pump as a back-up to be in
compliance. Bob Call said that the cost would be approximately $900. Massoth also said that a
couple of gauges need to be replaced also, but they shouldn't be too expensive. Massoth also said
that she became aware of a rural residence that is connected to untreated water. The clerk said
that this arrangement had been made with the property owner, but that she doesn't have any
details. Massoth advised the city to get something in writing for their protection.

She reported that she and Bob Call did some wastewater sampling in regards to previous
concerns about the locker plant. Massoth was informed by Roger Davis that he does have a
collection system to handle blood on their "kill" days. Massoth said that the wastewater
appeared to be fairly clear when they did the sampling. Davis has requested a copy of the test



results. Massoth also wondered about other factors, such as livestock trailers being washed at the
carwash.

Massoth told the council that someone afilliated with Fort Scott Communtiy College will
be doing a study of the lagoons and wastewater system in conjunction with KDHE. This will be
free of charge.

Massoth asked if she should contact Donna Crawford about reports that will be needed
to apply for a grant. She also asked if the council wants to add the chlorine pump and pressure
gauges to the waterline loan as there is about $39,000 left in approved funding. Bob Call said
that the concrete around Well #3 needs to be replaced. The council agreed by concensus to add
these items to the loan as soon as definite prices are determined.

Massoth said that the telemetry system should be installed soon, too.

MAINTENANCE REPORT: Bob Call reported that he had Well #1 oxidized, and it's still
down. He arranged for Patchen's and Ed Butterfield to meet to determine the cause of the
electrical problems to see if the problem can be fixed once and for all. Call said he met with the
Sprint service tech to get a phone line installed for the telemetry system. He also said he's
repaired the stools at Jones Park. Call said that the security lights are up at Jones Park. The
mayor said they work very well. He said that he's planning on cleaning out water valves to
make it easier to turn them on and off to fix water breaks. Call said he'd been asked by the new
owner of the trailer court on Elm who owns the abandoned railroad tracks. Ed Harmison said

that where there are still tracks belongs to the adjacent land owner, and where the tracks have
been removed belongs to the Kansas Horse Foundation. The mayor said that the owner should
verify the ownership with the county. Call said that he's done some street-patching and has
more to do. He also is going to repair some of the fence around the lagoons.

Call recommended skipping re-sealing the streets this year, and work on repairing the
really bad places, including along the edges rather than just covering up these areas with more
chip & seal material. The mayor commended the job being done by Call. Call said he hasn't
been able to find a part-time helper as yet. There was discussion about whether or not Mark
Tomlinson was still authorized to help mow at $6.00/hr. The most recent motion was to hire
someone who could work days.

Bob Call said that the tree/limb dump area is a real mess. He asked the council for
suggestions. The mayor suggested poles and cable be put around it to limit the access. The
problem is that things are being left there that are not allowed. The only things that are to be put
there are tree limbs, leaves and brush. Ira Allen mentioned that someone has left chunks of
concrete. Issuing fines for illegal dumping was mentioned. The mayor asked Call to check into
getting some new signs, and also adopting an ordinance that would define the penalties for
violators. While this has been a good service for the community, the state could fine the city if
the wrong things are dumped there. Call also asked about continuing to let someone hay the
grass around the lagoons. He was told to ask the people who are coming on Friday about
whether or not this should be allowed.

TREASURER'S REPORT: Max Friesen reported that the fund balances are low but there
should be a sizable tax levy from second-half taxes in mid-July. Friesen agreed that the figures
need to be ready for the July meeting so the 2004 budget can produce the necessary revenue, but
new wages shouldn't corne from the current budget. He also recommended taking some of Bob
Call's salary from Special Highway as he does the street repairs. The clerk said that Call's wages
corne from Water/Sewer, but she can change that if the council wants it done this way. She will
check with the auditor.

CLERK'S REPORT: Cheryl Brown said that she heard from Peggy Clark regarding writing
grants, and she recommended hiring Donna Crawford. Brown said that she had received a
notice from the state regarding Bob Sisson's unemployment benefits, but hasn't received a final



amount as yet. She told the council that she'll be on vacation next week and Mary Anderson will
be working. Brown also explained that she had put the requirements for minutes in their packets
to clarify that the official city records do not have to be written word-for-word. The council can
ask for things to be added or removed if they so desire.

TRAILS GRANT: Roger Harmon arrived at the meeting to discuss the status of the work on
the Trail. There was discussion about what is needed, including drainage tubes and dirtwork.
The clerk reminded them they need to keep records on time and equipment used for the
reimbursement request. Ed Harmison agreed to meet with Harmon to go over the area again.

COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS: Jim Gates mentioned that the Pat Neil, Jr residence is still
in bad shape, and wants to know what should be done next. Chief Harmison was asked to have
Neil come to the June 25th meeting, and Bob Call was told to check the water meters.

Ira Allen mentioned getting the Planning Commission involved on updating the zoning
regulations. He realizes that the members are busy people, so maybe the council needs to
consider finding people who have more time.

Rich Hamit reported that the pool seems to be running with no major problems, and that
the vending machines are working out so far. Hamit said he's talked to Rachael about several
situations. He said several season passes have been sold.

PLANNING APPOINTMENT: Rich Hamit made a motion, seconded by Jim Gates, to appoint
Don Meerian to serve the remainder of Ira Allen's term on the Planning Commission. Motion
carried 4-0.

TREE TRIMMING: Ed Harmison asked if the council wanted to have someone trim trees

again this year to avoid having to mail numerous notices at $4.42 per notice. The council agreed
by concensus for Harmison to take care of the matter.

MISe: Mayor Young read thank you notes from the 6-th grade classes for the day they spent
at the city lake.

Ed Harmison mentioned a new business in town, the Barbeque Barn owned by Bruce
Sisson.

Ira Allen also suggested the council consider changing the quorum from 3 members to 4
to allow for 2 members to visit or be on other committees without it being classified as an open
meeting. The clerk said that if the quorum is changed to 4 members, they'll have to be very
dedicated on attendance because there must be a quorum to have a meeting.

There being no further business before the council, Jim Gates moved to adjourn the
meeting at 9:50 PM. Rich Hamit seconded; motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Cheryl L Brown, City Clerk

APPROVED:



CITY OF OVERBROOK

MINUTES REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MAY 28,2003

MEMBERS PRESENT:

OTHERS PRESENT:

Bruce Smith, Ira ~l1en, Jim Gates, Oavid.Gerisch (7:07 pm),
Rich Hamit (7:55 pm). Mayor Jack Young absent.

Don & Caroly Meerian, Sheila Dale, Charles Hamner, Pat Martin, Mike
Fawl, Frank Rhodes, Michael Blood family, Shelley Foulke, Bob Call, Ed
Harmison, Everette Dannar, Cheryl Brown, Beth Pankratz, Joyce Metzger,
group of 49 citizens.

In Mayor Young's absence, Council President Bruce Smith called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. The
clerk called the roll; there was a quorum present.

MINUTES: Ira Allen asked that the reference to Sheila Dale as Osage County Land Use Coordinator be
eliminated as she was present as a concerned citizen. Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen that the
minutes be approved with the above change. Motion carried 3-0.

POOL REPORT: Rachael King asked if the council would approve charging the Fast Lane kids the same
admission fee as in 2002. Jim Gates moved that the fee be the same, $1.00 per child. Ira Allen seconded; motion
carried 3-0.

SAVE THE CLINIC GROUP: Beth Pankratz and Joyce Metzger came before the council as spokespersons for
the group of approximately 50 people to present their concern about the Kansas Medical Clinic's announced
closing at the end of July. Pankratz reported on what has been done in just the past few days, and some of the
plans for the future. She atated that the clinic staff has been in contact with the clinic's management, and that
the owners are aware that the community is very concerned about the matter and are willing to work to keep
the clinic open. Pankratz reported that there will be a public meeting at the grade school next week, and the
exact date will be announced after the time is confirmed with the school. She also mentioned that in addition to

private donations, community fundraisers could be held. Pankratz said that things need to be done
immediately to buy time, and then other resources of revenue can be pursued.

The matter of approaching the owner of the building to lower the rent was mentioned. Pankratz said
that she's not been in contact with Dr. Ruble, but is hoping that he will join in the effort to keep the clinic open.
She said that she's hoping that representatives from each of the community's groups will be willing to serve on a
committee that will put together a plan to present to the clinic's owners. Jim Gates and Ira Allen volunteered to
represent the governing staff on the committee. Contacting the Jones Fund was mentioned as a possibility also.

Pankratz mentioned that the community came together about 50 years ago to bring in medical care, and
that needs to be done again. It was also stated that more people need to use the clinic to ensure it's continued
presence.

GRANT SURVEY: Cheryl Brown reported that Peggy Clark has not responded to her messages as of
today. Bruce Smith said he had visited with a couple of towns on Donna Crawford's reference list, and they
were very pleased with her work. Smith said he also talked to Crawford, who while she can't guarantee
positive results, is optimistic about the possibility of success. After further discussion, Jim Gates made a
motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to hire Donna Crawford to do the survey at a fee of $4,550.00. Motion carried
4-0. The clerk stated that the survey results are valid for three years, and this Low To Moderate Income level
must be established to apply for almost every grant available.

WA'l'ER METER RATE INCREASE: This matter was tabled until more information is available. The current
ratfl is $500 for a new service, but rates for other towns is not known at this time.



JONES PARK RESTROOM:
with the ball association.

The matter of restroom cleaning was tabled as there hasn't been any contact

BOUNDARY: The clerk said she is still waiting to hear from the city attorney on what parts of the city lake
property are not included in the current boundary ordinance.

FRIESEN WATER REQUEST: Bruce Smith said that this matter is up to Friesen's presenting the requested
information to the council. Smith and Gates both said that their understanding is that Friesen is planning to
obtain water from the rural water district instead of the city.

Carolyn Meerian had asked about the terms and length of the city's contract with Rural Water District
#5 at the previous meeting. Smith told her that the city has a 40-year contract that is in effect until 2021. The
contract was updated in 1993 to increase our supply from 40 gal/minute to 120 gal/minute. The city's share of
the tower bond will be paid in 2009. This monthly bond share is currently $3,177.57. The contract is open to
re-negotiation by both parties. Smith said that while we do not use the full amount allocated to us, what we do
use is about 50% of what's necessary to supply the city at this time.

LAW: Chief Ed Harmison stated that in the future, meetings with a large number of people should be moved
to a bigger facility for fire safety reasons.

Harmison said that he and Officer Dannar have completed their required schooling for the year.
He reported that there are some big fish being caught at the city lake. The special event at Comad's Bar

& Grill went very well with no problems.

WARRANTS: The clerk presented four warrants that need to be paid before the next meeting. Jim Gates
made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen to pay the warrants. Motion carried.

CLERK'S REPORT: Cheryl Brown told the council that someone from Fort Scott Community College will be
here, in conjunction with KDHE grants, to review the lagoons and sewer system. There was discussion about
how to provide a boat. This will be done on June 13th.

The clerk asked if anyone wants the updated Governing Body handbook for $15/ each. No one did.
She also told the council that we've received an invitation to Rachael King's wedding on June 21st.
Brown also asked that the council and the mayor encourage people to contact her personally in regards

to being on the agenda. This is very helpful when material needs to be researched, and also lets the whole
council and mayor have an idea of what's to be discussed. She reminded them that there is an answering
machine at City Hall so messages can be left when the office is closed.

She told the council that the auditor will be here on June 3rd for the annual inspection of the city
records.

SECURITY LIGHTS: K & K Electric sent a proposal that will increase the cost of installing 2 security lights at
Jones Park There was discussion about ways to use the less-expensive lights. The council agreed by concensus
to ask Lee Kraus about pursuing using 110 volt fixtures. Brown said she would try to contact Kraus tonight
before the meeting ends.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to go into executive session with
Mike Fawl and Frank Rhodes present, for 15 minutes to discuss the sale of real property. Motion carried 5-0;
meeting was recessed. Bruce Smith called the meeting back to order at 8:00 PM; no action was taken as a result
of the closed session.

PARK LIGHTS: Jim Gates moved, with Ira Allen seconding, to allow Kraus to go ahead with the 480 volt lights
it it's not possible to use the 110 volt lights. Motion carried 5-0.



MAINTENANCE HELP: Bob Call has asked the council to consider hiring someone part-time to help
with the mowing. Ira Allen has had several people suggest hiring a retired person to read meters and help with
other projects when necessary. It was noted that Mark Tomlinson and Ed Harmison have been doing some
mowing at the lake. Gates asked about hiring Tomlinson to help Call. He would only be available evenings and
weekends. The council agreed to talk to Tomlinson.

Gates asked what the status is on the Trail's project. Brown said that the next step is to carve out the
path with the backhoe, but she hasn't talked to Roger Harmon since Bob Sisson's leaving. Harmison said he
thinks another little bridge may be needed. Rich Hamit said that there were alot of people fishing Memorial
Day, and that they were catching fish. There was discussion about possible changes in the licensing for next
year. Bruce Smith said he would contact Harmon before the next meeting.

Mark Tomlinson arrived at the meeting. After discussion, Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by David
Gerisch, to authorize hiring Mark Tomlinson as part-time temporary help to be used as needed by Bob Call at a
salary of $6.00jhr. Motion carried 5-0. Smith said he'd let Call know he has some help, and the two guys can
work out the details.

There was discussion about the things being left at the tree-dump area by the lagoons. The only things
that are supposed to be there are limbs and leaves that can be burned occasionally. If this continues to be
abused, it may be closed altogether.

COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS: Ira Allen reported that he had learned alot at the League of
Municipalities seminar. He said that one thing they recommended is that if the city is considering raising the tax
levy that they do so this year as the tax lid may be put back in place this next session. Allen said that water
revenue and court costs were also discussed. Changing the quorum required for meetings from three to four
was also mentioned. This has been discussed in the past. They also suggested having a call-list for people
wanting to be notified for special meetings since the meetings do not have to be published in advance.

Rich Hamit said that things seem to be going well at the pool, including the vending machines. The
clerk said that more keys to the gate are needed.

Ira Allen also recommended that more of the council attend future League classes if at all possible,
including the city clerk.

PART-TIME HELP: Mark Tomlinson returned to the meeting to report that Bob Call would prefer having
someone available during daytime hours. Bob Call was then asked to come to the meeting. He explained that
he needed someone that to help with major projects or water breaks in addition to the mowing. This person
would also be trained to check things when Bob Call is on vacation, etc. Ira Allen made a motion, seconded by
Rich Hamit, to authorize Bob Call to pursue hiring someone part-time at a salary of $7.00jhr., up to 16 hrs per
week. Motion carried 5-0.

There being no further business before the council, Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Rich
Hamit, to adjourn. Motion carried; meeting was adjourned at 9:25 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Cheryl L. Brown
City Clerk

APPROVED; _



CITY OF OVERBROOK

MINUTES REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MAY 14, 2003

MEMBERS PRESENT:

OTHERS PRESENT:

Bruce Smith, Rich Hamit, Jim Gates, Ira Allen, Mayor Jack Young. David
Gerisch (7:40 pm).

Rachael King, Don & Carolyn Meerian, Sheila Dale, Bruce Anderson,
Michael Coffman, Charles Hamner, Jon Wilhite, James Foster, Bob

Meggison, Ed Harmison, Everette Dannar, Mark Tomlinson, Bob Sisson,
Max Friesen, Bob Call, Marian Massoth, Cheryl Brown.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Young at 7 :00 P.M. Roll call by the clerk established that a
quorum was present.

MINUTES! WARRANTS: Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to approve the minutes of the
April 23, 2003 meeting as written. Motion carried 4-0.

After a brief discussion, Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Bruce Smith to pay all warrants
presented. Motion carried 4-0.

POOL REPORT: Rachael King was present to give an update on the pool. Rich Hamit and Bob Sisson
gave an update on the repairs by McKee Pools. Hamit reported that the Schmidt Vending is willing to supply
machines but would bring 3 machines--one for pop, one for snacks, and a refrigerated one for candy. The candy
machine is not weather-proof so would need to be inside. Hamit and King have checked on where this could be
located. They are suggesting that the full-size refrigerator be replaced with a countertop model. Exchanging the
one at the pool with the one at city hall was discussed. Cheryl Brown said that the countertop model at city hall is
sitting under a table in the copier room, and she doesn't have any idea where a full-sized one would fit. The
possibility of checking with Walt Martin regarding a trade-in was discussed. Sheila Dale suggested removing a
section of counter to make room. Hamit said he would look at the possibility. The council agreed by concensus
to proceed with using the machines if the logistics can be settled.

King reported that she's been checking on family passes at some other pools. After discussion, Bruce
Smith made a motion to charge $140 for a family pass, $50 for an adult pass, and $40 for a child (11 & younger)
pass which would be good for the 2003 season. Jim Gates seconded; motion carried 4-0. It was also decided that
a family pass would include just immediate family members.

WATER SERVICEIFRIESEN: Results of the Osage County Planning Commission hearing regarding the
Friesen rural development were discussed. Sheila Dale,""'" ~. ~1, explained the plat approval was
tabled because of various deficiencies in the plat itself. Mayor Young asked Michael Coffman, City Attorney, to
summarize his opinion of the easements. Coffman stated the following: there are public records showing 3
documents addressing use of water related to Friesen's property. The first one is a 1953 easement to the city,
which addresses a pipeline and the city's right to maintain it. The second agreement is between individuals and
doesn't give the city any rights. The third one is an easement that grants the addition of another pipeline beside the
original pipeline, but doesn't pertain to the easement crossing the Meggison property. Coffman said that the city
would have to have an easement to install a new pipeline across the Meggison property, but the developer could
be asked to obtain such an easement. Bruce Smith said that the city would need to have some involvement with
the wording of the easement because it would eventually be responsible for the maintenance.

Bruce Anderson stated that usually the developer brings the completed plat, but he feels in this case the
city has becQme the agent for the developer, including the extra expense of attorney fees. Mayor Young stated



that the attorney was being paid for opinions to benefit the city, and not the developer. Anderson asks why the
city hasn't required the developer to bring in complete plans, including necessary easements, and the council base
their decision on those plans. The mayor said the city will probably wait until the county makes a decision
regarding the matter. Sheila Dale said the county feels that ifthe city wants to provide Friesen with water, the
city should annex the property. Bruce Smith asked the attorney about jurisdiction regarding Osage Rural Water
District #5. Coffman said that he doesn't see a problem as long as RWD#5 agrees with the city's decision. Dale
then asked if RWD#5 would have to sell that section of their district to the city. Coffman said he didn't think that
would be necessary, but would have to check into it. Smith said that he didn't see annexation as the issue, as we
have other customers outside the city limits. Dale then asked if that made it "right"? Smith said that he didn't
know about it being right or wrong, but that it's been done for the past 50 years. Coffman said that he would
research the matter, but doesn't see a problem with the city supplying water, as long as RWD#S isn't in
opposition. Mayor Young then asked Max Friesen if he has a letter from Rural Water District #5 stating that
they didn't want to supply water to the property. Smith said that the manager had told him that the property
wasn't specifically their territory.

Jim Gates stated that he is in favor of Friesen presenting a set of complete plans for the council to
consider. Smith said that Friesen did present a set of plans showing the plats. Ira Allen said that those plans
didn't show any easements, and that we may need a contract with RWD#5. Coffman said that he doesn't think
this matter should be treated any differently than existing agreements regarding RWD#5. He has spoken to the
manager and his understanding is that who supplies the water is a non-issue.

There was discussion about the size of the waterline, and requirements concerning fITehydrants in rural
areas. Dale said that the fire district can require certain size pipe in order to service fire hydrants.

Anderson brought up the quality of water to the Jim Arnold property. Arnold has indicated that he would
prefer the line be installed in such a way to prevent his having "muddy" water. Bob Sisson said that Arnold is
now on a dead-end line, and a new line would improve the quality.

Sheila Dale made a presentation in opposition to the city's supplying water to the Friesen rural
development. It included the following points: l.The amount of water in the wells 2 The taxpayers helping
Friesen developing the rural property including attorney fees regarding easements 3. The length, future extension,
and the cost of water contracted from Rural Water District #5 4. Means of paying for the waterline now being
constructed. She was told that the new waterline is being paid for by an increase in water rates. The mayor said
that taxes may be raised in the future, but not to pay for the current construction. Dale stated that she was
concerned about money being earmarked for one purpose and then being spent on something else, especially
something outside the city limits. 5. The addition of another lift station east oftown--who's going to pay for this
additional development. 6. The concern about taking on the maintenance of rural water lines when the city
waterlines are in bad shape 7. The city issuing a moratorium on rural water service until good regulations are in
place 8. Applying for grants for planning and zoning from the state that are not income-based
This presentation will be included in it's entirety with the official minutes. The mayor thanked Dale for coming
to the meeting.

James Foster came before the council to discuss the importance ofthe city's being very careful about
planning and developing. He told the council that he has literature with names, etc that will be helpful in
researching this matter. He also said he has an address for a website that has alot of information regarding public
works. He wanted to emphasize the importance of this matter to the whole community, and not just the city itself.
Mayor Young thanked him and asked him to provide the addresses mentioned above.

There was more discussion about the conditions of the current easements owned by Friesen. Friesen has
the right to hook on to the city's line that runs through his property, but how this is done is yet to be determined.

Dale brought up the fact that the city has denied water to rural property owners in the past. Smith said
that this may have been done due to water supply at that time, but the current contract with RWD# 5 has
increased the supply available.

Don Meerian stated that he's heard of the wells having to be shut down due to iron, bacteria, or salt. He
asked what the city's recourse is in that case. He was told the wells would be treated, and the city would use rural



water while this is done. Carolyn Meerian asked about the current limit from RWD#S. The clerk said the current

contract allows the city to buy approximately 3 and one half million gallons per month, and to her knowledge the
most that's ever been bought is 2 1/2 million gallons.

Mayor Young said that it seems to him that this matter is back to where it started. Jim Gates made a
motion, seconded by Ira Allen, that Max Friesen bring a complete set of plans, including all necessary easements,
and a letter from Rural Water District #5 stating that there is no conflict with the city supplying water, to the
council before a decision is made. Motion carried 5-0. The mayor told Bob Meggison that agreements
concerning easements are to be made by him and Friesen, and not the city. The matter was tabled until these
documents are available.

WATERISEWER REPORT: Marian Massoth was present to tell the council that the new pipeline is almost
done. They have to install one more clean-out valve, flush and clean the line, and chlorinate it. She's not sure of
Anno's schedule, but it should be done soon. She's prepared another addendum to the contract which will
authorize the installation of a water-level sensor that will automatically control the rural water pump depending on
the tower level. The one originally bid would just set off a series of phone calls. After discussing the benefits,
Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Bruce Smith, to authorize the extra $3800 expense to the original loan
amount to install the automatic water-level sensor. Motion carried 5-0.

Massoth then brought up the matter of the improvements to the wastewater system that have been
required by the Department of Health & Environment. She has written a letter to KDHE stating that the city has
passed a resolution to apply for a Revolving Fund loan, and that a letter has been composed to send to the
residents regarding illegal hook-up's. Smith said he is still working on the plan for inspecting hook-up's.

Massoth gave the council a spreadsheet outlining the phases of the project, and the estimated costs for
each item. The total cost would be approximately $400,000. She said that the actual cost would probably be
less, but KDHE prefers ample leeway to avoid having to start over. Massoth said that the loan could be used as
matching funds for any future grants. She also reminded the council that the fmalloan amount depends on what
we actually use. Massoth said the next thing to be done is set a time for the public meeting and hearing. The
council agreed by concensus to set the public meeting to be followed by the hearing at 8 PM on June 25th.
Comments and or questions from the public will be heard at this hearing, followed by a final decision by the
council. Sheila Dale asked about houses outside the city limits, but within 400 feet of a public sewer. There are
some residences just north of the city limits that may be subject to this county ordinance, depending on how the
measuring is done. Massoth said she would provide information for public inspection between now and the
meeting.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Rich Hamit made a motion, seconded by Bruce Smith, to go into executive
session from 8:45 pm until 8:55 pm with the city attorney to discuss matters not related to elected personnel.
Motion carried. Mayor Young opened the meeting at 8:55 pm. Jim Gates moved that the meeting be recessed
from 8:55 pm until 9:05 pm; David Gerisch seconded; meeting was recessed. Mayor Young called the meeting
back to order at 9:05 pm. Bruce Smith made a motion, seconded by Jim Gates, to call for the dismissal of Bob
Sisson as Maintenance Supervisor based on his recently revealed health issue that makes it impossible for him to
complete the duties of his position, and that he be paid until the end of May, 2003 including unused vacation pay.
Motion carried 5-0. Sisson asked about his insurance. The clerk said that he will be covered until the end of
June.

CITY HALL CHIMNEY: Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to wait until August or
September to replace the chimney, and to consider replacing the whole unit at that time if necessary. Motion
carried 5-0.

GRANT SURVEY PROPOSAL: Mayor Young said that while there are no quarantees that the survey will
be in our favor, he thinks that the survey will have to eventually be done. Bruce Smith asked about contacting



some other grant-writers. Carolyn Meerian suggested Peggy Clark be considered, as she has done work in Osage
County. The council agreed by concensus to contact Clark to come to the next meeting before making a final
decision. It was also decided to contact some of the towns listed in Donna Crawford's proposal. Smith said he
would contact some of these towns to see what their income levels were before the surveys were done. Jim Gates
said that he feels that we need to do something to satisfy the citizens about efforts to obtain a grant.

MISC: Bob Sisson said that K&K Electric has ordered the security lights, but isn't sure when they'll be
installed.

RE-APPOINTMENT OF CITY OFFICERS: Max Friesen stated that in two months he will have been either

on the city council or treasurer for 50 years and thinks it's time for him to retire. Mayor Young asked permission
to reappoint him until he resigns as he doesn't have anyone else to appoint at this time. Bruce Smith made a
motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to reappoint all city officers as listed. Motion carried 4-0, with Gerisch
abstaining. This list is available for public inspection during regular business hours.

P.R.I.D.E.: Bruce Smith made a motion, seconded by Jim Gates, to adopt Resolution No 49 to authorize the
P.R.I.D.E. committee for the current year. Motion carried 5-0.

LA W REPORT: Chief Ed Harmison presented a bid from Everette Dannar to install metal bars in the
police department door and windows for $400.00. Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Bruce Smith, to accept
the bid. Motion carried 5-0.

Harmison reviewed his written report for the council. He also asked permission for Dannar and himself
to attend a school for 3 days at a cost of$12/person. Council agreed by concensus.

Harmison pointed out that a small portion of the city lake property is technically outside the city limit,
and recommends that the city pass an ordinance to include all the property in a boundary ordinance. He can
legally enforce city laws as it is, but would like for it to be addressed. The clerk said she is having Michael
Coffman research this matter.

Harmison reviewed the path of the recent tornado that skirted Overbrook, and told the council that he has
a video taken by a deputy sheriff in his posession. He pointed out the possible path that would have been affected
had it stayed on the ground.

Harmison asked that driving on the dams at the city lake be prohibited, and some kind of posts be put in
place as prevention.

Chief Harmison pointed out that Overbrook is the lowest taxed city in Osage County, and shared
comparisons with other cities our size.

He also told the council that he has a list of 6th, 7th, and 8th graders that would be interested in working
this summer. Jobs ranged from reading to the elderly to mowing to washing windows, so we might keep this in
mind.

Harmison asked if the council still agreed to order the signs he had requested in February. The council
agreed as they thought this had been done.

Mark Tomlinson asked that the council consider making changes in the rates for city lake licenses for
2004 based on where the person lives and also their age. He also suggested charging for boats. The council said
they would take this matter into consideration this winter.

TREASURER'S REPORT: Max Friesen said that he's concerned about the Water/Sewer fund. The clerk

told him that the expenses for the new waterline come out before the reimbursements show up.

CLERK'S REPORT; Cheryl Brown read a thank-you note from the Greens's for a plant sent after the
accidental death of one of their employees. She also said she had sent coupons for city lake permits to Santa Fe
Trail High School. She also mentioned a letter received regarding participating in a national "Lights On"



campaign later this year. Various ways to recognize Bob Sisson's time of service was discussed. This was
tabled until the next meeting.

BALL ASSOCIATION: Jim Jolly was present to discuss some items at Jones Park, including the scoreboards.
The council said that Lee Krause should be contacted. Jolly about the status of cleaning the bathrooms. The
clerk said that this has always been done by whoever is in charge ofthe concession stand. The problem may be
partly due to them being unlocked during the day when no one is around. Ed Harmison said that he feels they
should be unlocked for public use. Jolly also pointed out that when the stools back up, it backs up into the other
parts of the building. Everette Dannar said he's noticed that the doors are sometimes unlocked after the games.
Jolly said that all the coaches have keys, and they're supposed to be locking the doors before they leave. He also
said that he hasn't seen any kids in the park at that time. His policy has been to keep kids out of the park after 10
PM when there are no games. Harmison said that the additional lighting may help the problem. The possibility of
hiring a couple of kids to clean the bathrooms a couple of times was discussed. Mayor Young said that the
parents of the kids who play ball may have to decide just how much they want their kids to play ball, and help
more with the overall maintenance and upkeep of the bathrooms and concession stand. Jolly also said that the
electricity will have to be left on all year to operate the security lights. The council wasn't sure how to handle the
bathroom situation. Several did say it would be cheaper to hire the cleaning be done than rent portable
bathrooms. Jolly was told to check with some people about what they would charge to clean them and report
back to the council. Harmison was asked to check with some of the school kids. Jolly asked permission to put up
an announcer's stand between the diamonds. It's still in the planning stages.

MISC: Ed Harmison reported that he is researching grants, etc to get a siren for the north side of town.

EXEC SESSION: Bruce Smith made a motion, seconded by Rich Hamit, to recess the meeting for 15
minutes with Bob Call to discuss personnel matters. Motion carried. The mayor called the meeting back to
order. Bruce Smith moved to go back into executive session for another 10 minutes; Rich Hamit seconded.
Motion carried. Mayor Young called the meeting back to order. Bruce Smith made a motion, seconded by Jim
Gates, to raise Bob Call's pay to $ll.OO/hour for a 90-day probation period and also to authorize calling Todd
Goodyear for help with emergencies. Motion carried 5-0.

There being no further business before the council, Jim Gates made a motion to adjourn. Rich Hamit
seconded; meeting was adjourned at 11:00 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Cheryl L. Brown
City Clerk

APPROVED:



MINUTES REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 23, 2003

MEMBERS PRESENT: Rich Hamit, David Gerisch, Jim Gates, Ira Allen, Mayor Jack Young.
Bruce Smith absent.

OTHERS PRESENT: JoAnn Lemberger, Donna Crawford, Dennis Graves, Walt Martin, Tom
Saner, Conrad Boos, Bob Meggison, Mark Tomlinson, Max Friesen,
Ed Harmison, Everette Dannar, Cheryl Brown.

The council meeting was called to order by Mayor Young at 7;00 PM. Roll call verified that a quorum wat
present.

MINUTES: Rich Hamit made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to approve the minutes of the April 9,2003
meeting as written. Motion carried 4-0..

REQUEST: Conrad Boos came before the council to ask permission to block off some of the parking in front
of Conrad's Bar & Grill for a special event on May 23,2003. They hosted this same event last year. Mayor Young
asked Boos if he would be willing to share in the cost of extra policemen needed for that event. Boos asked if
other groups were asked to share the cost for extra police coverage. The mayor said not at this time, but he may
be asking them in the future. Boos said that as a taxpayer, he would be opposed to the extra expense. After
discussion with Chief Harmison, Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to approve the request. Motiar
carried 4-0.

AFLAC: Tom Saner, agent for AFLAC was present to ask permission from the council to present their plan to
city employees. AFLAC does ask for the payments to be made in one check through payroll if enough
employees are interested. They do require a certain percentage of employees to participate. The council agreed
by concensus to allow Saner to make an appointment with the employees at a mutally convenient time.

GRANT PROCEDURES: Donna Crawford, Governmental Assistance Services, was present at the council's
request. Crawford had previously sent packets for the council's consideration. She pointed out that Overbrook's
current Low-To-Moderate Income level is 32.3% and 51% is required to be grant-eligible. Crawford said that this
means a survey would have to be done, and her company does this. There was discussion about the advantages
of having this done by someone other than local people. Crawford reviewed her qualifications and proposal with
the council. Her company does charge $4,550 to do the survey which would be paid regardless of the results.
The survey results are acceptable for 3 years. She explained that her company does not allow the mayor or
council to look at individual survey results. Crawford said that they give a total tally, then put the surveys in a
locked box until a decision has been made on whether or not the grant is awarded. Crawford then delivers the
surveys to the Department of Commerce. Crawford has bid $5,450 to write the grant application, providing the
city qualifies for a grant. Crawford informed the council that the grant application must be submitted by
October 1st of this year, and must be accompanied by the engineer's report. There was considerable discussion
about the entire procedure. Crawford encouraged the council to check the references, and the whole proposal is
available for public inspection at City Hall. The matter was tabled until the May 14th meeting.

CITY HALL CHIMNEY: Walt Martin presented a bid for $650 to repair the chimney. He said that it will
probably take 2-3 days. The council tabled the decision until the next meeting.

MISC: The procedure for sewer hook-up inspections, vending machines at the pool, increasing the rate chargee
for new utility service connections within the city limits, and the security lights at Jones Park were all tabled until
a future meeting.



WATER TOWER TELEMETRY: Mayor Young reported Sisson's findings about prices on a water-level sensor
to be installed on the 50,000 gallon tower. There were questions about what DA's Backhoe bid included. The
council agreed by concensus to have the sensor installed, providing the current loan covers the cost.

EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE: After discussion about the city's self-insuring the employees to help
offset the increased deductible, David Gerisch made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to approve the plan from
Blue Cross Blue Shield which includes a $1000/$2000 deductible. Motion carried 4-0.

RURAL WATER SERVICE; Mayor Young stated that it was his opinion that the city isn't wanting to add
more easements, but is just waiting on some kind of agreement between two neighboring property owners.

Max Friesen stated that his plan is to develop 6 building sites, and is wanting to pay for the installation of
a water line connecting the city's new 6" line to these building sites. As the property is outside the city limits, fire
coverage would be done by Osage Rural Fire District No 4. The meters would be read in the same manner as the
existing rural meters. Ira Allen stated that after having read minutes from previous meetings, it seems to him
that the council has already voted to supply water and that only the details need to be decided. He personally
would like Friesen to pay for at least 3 meters up front, and also install a 4" line rather than a 2" line. He also
would like to see a hydrant installed on the line. After discussion, Friesen said he would consider paying for 2
meters at the current Rural Water District rate. Bob Meggison, owner of adjacent property, still had some
concerns about easements and where the new water line would be installed. The council agreed by concensus to
postpone any final decisions until the city attorney can review all the documents relating to the current easements.
The matter was tabled until the next meeting.

MISe: Rich Hamit made a motion, seconded by David Gerisch, to accept the resignation of Ira Allen from the
Overbrook Planning Commission. Motion carried.

POOL FEES: The new fees for swimming lessons and admission was brought up for discussion. Several
people have voiced their concern over the amount of the increase. It was decided to have Rachael King and her
staff attend the May 14th meeting.

LAW REPORT: Chief Harmison reported that he has had the city limit signs moved to correlate with the latest
boundary ordinance. He mentioned the place by the school where water always stands after rains and voiced his
concern that this could cause problems in the winter time. Bob Sisson is to check this out to see if the drainage can
be improved. Harmison told the council that he is getting estimates for installing bars in the police department
door and windows.

Mark Tomlinson told the council that he's been using his personal live traps for animal control, but would
like the city to buy two for him to use instead. Mayor Young told him to get prices for the next meeting.

The council agreed by concensus to have Sisson repaint the crosswalk on Highway 56 as soon as possible.

COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS: Ira Allen asked that the council set up guide lines for the Planning
Commission. Mayor Young said that he was told that the city does need to check into their zoning ordinance, and
is thinking of forming a committee to help the Planning Commission.

Rich Hamit wanted to encourage Ira Allen to attend the Governing Body Institute sponsored by the
League of Municipalities. Hamit also said that he's been informed by KDOT personnel that they won't be
recommending changing the speed limit on Hwy 56 near the city lake. Everette Dannar said he would check into
other ways to reduce the speed in this area.

MAYOR'S REPORT: Mayor Young announced the following council liaison: Bruce Smith---water/sewer,
Jim Gates--streets, Ira Allen--police, David Gerisch--office, and Rich Hamit--recreation & special projects. The
mayor asked for the following: Hamit to develop a plan for a Recreation Commission, Allen to work on 4-yr plan
for personnel and budget for law, Gates to come up with 4-yr plan for street repair and budget, Gerisch to work
with the clerk for 4-yr plan for equipment, and Smith to develop a 4-yr plan to cover sewer requirements and



testing. The mayor also asked for volunteers to work on guidelines for the Planning Commission. Allen and
Gates volunteered, and Smith was volunteered by the mayor.

Rich Hamit made a motion, seconded by Jim Gates, to name Bruce Smith as President of the Council.
Motion carried.

There being no further business before the council, Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by David Gerisch,
to adjourn. Motion carried; meeting was adjourned at 9:30 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Cheryl L. Brown
City Clerk

APPROVED:



CITY OF OVERBROOK

MINUTES REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING APRIL 9, 2003

MEMBERS PRESENT: David Gerisch, Rich Hamit, Jim Gates, Mayor Jack Young.
Ira Allen (council-elect) was present; Bruce Smith arrived
after the meeting started.

OTHERS PRESENT: Don & Carolyn Meerian, Pat Martin, Rachael King, Wilma Sicks,
Charles Hamner, Mark & JoElien Criger, Joe & Kenny Greene,
Bob Meggison, Mike Fawl, Marian Massoth, Mark Tomlinson,
Bob Sisson, Everette Dannar, Max Friesen, Cheryl Brown.

Mayor Young called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Roll call determined
that a quorum was present.

MINUTES/ WARRANTS: Jim Gates moved to approve the minutes of the March
26, 2003 meeting as written; seconded by Rich Hamit. Motion carried.

Rich Hamit made a motion, seconded by Jim Gates, to pay all warrants
presented. Motion carried.

OATH OF OFFICE: The clerk administered the oath of office to councilmembers
Rich Hamit, re-elected, and to Ira Allen, newly-elected.

DRIVEWAY: Wilma Sicks of 607 Maple was present to request the city do
something to improve the slope of her driveway as the present angle causes the back
of a car to drag. The council agreed by concensus to have maintenance put in some
streetpatch to smooth it out without changing the drainage too much.

CITY HALL CHIMNEY: Rich Hamit volunteered to contact some people to inspect the
chimney to see if it can be repaired.

SEWER HOOK-UPS: The council reviewed the letter prepared by the mayor for the
purpose of inspecting hook-ups to the city sewer system. The council approved the
letter with some changes.

JONES PARK LIGHTS: Bob Sisson reported that the engineer from Westar
Engergy told him that the cost of setting a pole would be seven or eight hungred
dollars, to be paid $1.59 or so monthly for the lifetime of the pole. It would be
necessary to install a transformer if we request a pole at a cost of $1,000.00. The
annual cost for using these lights for security year-round would be $750. The
engineer recommended that the city install regular security lights where there is
already electricity. The council told Sisson to check with Lee Krause on what this
would cost.

Sisson said that the restrooms at Jones Park are up and running.

MIse: Cheryl Brown said that she has mailed the petitions to add the History
channel to local cable service to Galaxy, and that the request is being considered.
There was discussion about problems with the cable service, and making phone calls
was encouraged.

SOUD WASTE CONTRACT: Joe and Kenny Greene of Osage Waste Disposal, Inc
were present to confirm the contract renewal and ask if there are any problems. ThE



council agreed that the service is very satisfactory, and they have already voted to
renew the contract at the current rates. Greene asked that the clerk write a letter to
this effect.

REAPPOINTMENTS: Ira Allen made a motion, seconded by Rich Hamit, to
reappoint JoAnn Lemberger to the Housing Authority. Motion carried.

David Gerisch moved to appoint Kristy Hamit to the Library board to complete
Kelly Mabon's term. Jim Gates seconded; motion carried.

Jim Gates made a motion, seconded by Ira Allen, to reappoint JA Cordts to
the Library board for a second term. Motion carried.

The clerk reminded Ira Allen that he will need to resign from the Planning
Commission due to his serving on the city council. Allen then stated that the
Commission is waiting on guidelines from the council as to their exact duties.
Mayor Young said that he and the council need to work on this.

SWEARINGIN: The clerk administered the oath of office to re-elected
councilmember Bruce Smith upon his arrival at the meeting.

POOLREPORT: Rachael King presented her proposal for the 2003 season. One
of the changes will be closing the pool at 5 Pm on Wednesday's. King said that the
attendance was low on Wednesday nights due to ballgames, etc. Another change
would be fees for swimming lessons and daily admission. She suggested charging
$30jeach for the first 2 children in a family, and $25 for each additional child. The
daily admission fees would be $2 for ages 11 and older; $1.50 for 10 and younger.
The council agreed that King needs to be on the payroll as of now, and that the pool
staff should come to a council meeting as soon as possible. The pool will open
Memorial Day week-end weather permitting.

King asked if the locks could be changed so that she would know exactly who
has keys. The council told Sisson to get new locks installed.

Rich Hamit made a motion, seconded by Bruce Smith, to pay the $60 for
Rachael King to attend a Lifeguard Management Course offered by Red Cross on April
26th. Motion carried to pay the fee providing King can clear her schedule to attend.

Rich Hamit has talked to two vendors. One was not interested at all, and the
other would only furnish one for snacks if he could put in one for pop also. Hamit
said he would have more details for the next meeting.

King will be gone for two weeks, but has made arrangements for Jeanette
King to manage the pool during this time.

RURALWATERSERVICE: Mayor Young stated he had told several concerned
citizens at the last meeting that he would bring up the subject of the city's providing
water service to rural property owned by Max Friesen at this meeting. The mayor
said that the council had voted at the previous meeting to put this service on "hold"
due to the information received at that meeting. The mayor said that the council
was not aware that their decision would affect an economical situation between
Friesen and Bob Meggison in the granting of a right-of-way. Other citizens had
expressed concerns about water supply and water line maintenance. Mark Criger
reminded the mayor that he had also recommended the city developing a long-range
plan for water supply.

Bruce Smith said that the city had increased the water supply from Rural
Water District #5 several years ago, and using figures from the average water usage
at this time, he doesn't see a problem with the supply. Smith said that the city
should be making money from the sale of water, regardless of whether it comes from
city wells or from the RWD5. He also stated that the city should have 200
gal/minutes from the total system--80 gal/minute from the wells and a possible 140



gal/minute from RWDS. Criger asked if Smith knows how many more families can be
served with the present supply. Smith replied that by using current estimates, he
would say another 350-380 customers could be served. He repeated that this is just
an estimate. To be more accurate, he would have to go back and get the actual
amounts from the past 2-3 years. Criger said that he was concerned about possible
new customers within the city limits having ample supply.

Ira Allen asked why we would want to put in a water line outside the city.
Smith said that the developer would be the responsible for the cost of the installation
of the line. Allen asked about problems such as rust with dead-end lines. Smith said
that can be taken care of by installing a flush-out on the end of the line and
occasionally running water through it. He also explained that the present system of
roughly 14 miles of pipeline has several flush-out's in it, and so doesn't feel that an
additional 2500 feet of line should cause a major problem.

Allen then asked what would happen to the existing meters. Smith said this
needs to be discussed. He wrote a letter to Meggison, with the understanding that
service with the existing set up was less than satisfactory, suggesting that the
present customers be switched over to the new line. Meggison said that he didn't
see how being connected to the new line would improve his service, and he wasn't
sure how this got exaggerated. Smith then said that was the version he got from
somewhere, and since there were 3 households being served from one household
meter, it made sense to him. There was discussion about connections to new lines.
Smith stated that installing a service line for Friesen's property along the road would
be the best choice, but it could be installed wherever the easements can be obtained.
There was more discussion about where the existing line is located. Smith said that
the line that services Meggison, Bruce Anderson, and Jimmy Arnold is a private line
at the present time. Meggison asked about maintenance on a new line. Smith
replied that the maintenance would be a routine matter, such as it is currently.

Don Meerian asked how many more housing sections, such as this one, is the
city planning to add. Carolyn Meerian asked just how much further east the city was
planning to extend. Smith said that the motion passed at a previous meeting was to
limit providing water to sections where the city currently has water lines, but has no
plans to annex property. There were questions about sewer service. Smith said this
would be a matter for the county, not the city.

Mark Criger asked what the positive's and the negative's would be regarding
granting this particular service request. Smith said that the positive's would include
revenue from the sale of meters at the same rate as RWD#5, which is currently in
the $4,000 range, and from the continued sale of water. He also stated that he
would prefer to add customers in town, but more people in the community as a
whole would be a good thing. The mayor said that more people could be a good
thing, but that alot of people live here because they like smaller towns. Criger said
that eventually there would have to be repairs on the line that would be paid for in
part by city taxpayers. Smith agreed, but said that ownership brings responsibility.
He also stated that the developer has to meet city specs when installing any new
service line, regardless of location.

The council agreed by concensus to table the matter until the April 23rd
meeting in order to make the most informed decision.

WATER/SEWERREPORT: Marian Massoth reported that the new 6" water line is
progressing well, and it's almost to the cemetery. She said a decision has to made
concerning the tower telemetry system. She recommends the city pursue getting a
sensor that will automatically turn the rural water pump on and off.

Massoth said that they have found the old 6' line isn't always where the maps
indicate, so there have been some adjustments in where the new line is installed.
KDHEwill require as-built plans most likely. There was discussion about having a



tracer wire with the new line. Massoth assured the council that the existing
easements cover the adjustments_ There was discussion about using a hand-held
GPSand mark the new line every so often for future reference.

Massoth said she had written a letter to KDHEregarding some concerns they
have about Overbrook's progress with wastewater improvements. They have
mentioned having the EPAaudit the system. She said that we need to avoid this if
at all possible. KDHEis recommending that the city pursue applying for the
Revolving Fund loan as soon as possible. Jim Gates said that he agrees that we get
started on the recommendations listed in Massoth's report as soon as possible.
Massoth said that the additional samples the council requested at the last meeting
should be taken next week. Sisson said that the butchering is done on Monday's.
Massoth also mentioned the possibility of material going down the carwash drain
contributing to high influent BOD levels. The mayor asked if the turn-down elbows
are already installed. Massoth said that one has been put in place, but two more are
needed. The council told Sisson to have these installed as soon as possible. Sisson
said he would make arrangements with Delbert Anno.

There was discussion about financing the other recommendations. The city is
going to try the grant-application process again, but Massoth suggested starting the
loan application at the same time. The council asked the clerk to have the necessary
forms at the next meeting. It was agreed that Massoth would let KDHE know that
the city is pursuing the loan application and also the grant.

PROPERTYDEVELOPMENT: Mike Fawl was present to inquire about available
sewer service to property just east of the fairgrounds. His plan is to put in 22 family
units and one business. There was discussion about what the city would require from
him as the developer. The council told Fawl that he would need to install a lift
station, but would need to have the property platted, etc in order to know where
everything should be located for drainage purposes. Fawl aslo said he would like to
talk about building a road on the property line, and sharing the cost with the city.
Bruce Smith said that in the past, the developer has built the road, and then the city
would accept the road when approved. Fawl explained that part of his wanting a
road is to define the boundary between his property and the fairgrounds. The mayor
asked what business Fawl was planning to open to which Fawl responded something
like a Dairy Queen. Fawl also asked about economical assistance the city could
provide as far as tax incentives. The council said this would have to be researched
alot more. Fawl also asked about the present zoning. The clerk said that she would
have to check the zoning map, but thought it might be "Public Use" like the
fairgrounds. There was discussion about the lagoon capacity at the present and in
the future. Marian Massoth said that the second phase of the recommendation
includes building another lagoon to address future growth. The matter was then
tabled until more information is available.

LAW REPORT: Chief Ed Harmison reviewed his written report for the council.
As Harmison had been busy working a case, there was no further discussion.

MAINTENANCEREPORT: Bob Sisson reported that repairs are being done on two
of the wells. Sisson said that the pool needs a good cleaning, but doesn't think it
needs painted yet. Mayor Young asked if all the concrete work from earlier repairs
has been done, and was told it has been taken care of.

Sisson asked the council to consider raising the price for new water meter
services from $500, as this barely covers the cost of a new service. He was told to
check rates from some other towns.

He said that he's been patching streets when not out on the new waterline
project. The mayor told him to be sure and fix Wilma Sicks' driveway.



Rich Hamit asked if there's been problems with the east lift station. Sisson
said that the heaters hadn't been working and is waiting for the company to send
someone to fix them. Hamit told him that Shirley Simmons mentioned that there
was a terrible odor coming from the ditch on her property. Sisson said that there
may be a venting problem. Hamit then said that Simmons told him there was
something standing in the ditch. Sisson said he would check it out.

Hamit then asked if Sisson could take the council on a tour of the wells, and
lift stations and lagoons. It was scheduled for 5:30 PMon April 23rd before the next
meeting.

Jim Gates reported that he had talked to both Bob Sisson and Bob Call about
reading all the meters in the middle of the month rather than spreading it out over
the last half of the month. Currently they're divided into 3 groups (books) and read
on3 different days sometime in the last half of the month. The council agreed that
reading all 3 books within a 2-3 day period would be better for both the clerk and
also monthly comparisons between production and sales.

TREASURER'SREPORT: Max Friesen reported that the funds appear to have the
normal balances for this time of year. He encouraged everyone to watch the
expenses as much as possible.

CLERK'SREPORT: Cheryl Brown asked the council to please review the agreement
proposed by Westar Energy regarding street light replacement.

She also said that the contract with Blue Cross Blue Shield for health
insurance needs a decision at the next meeting. She was asked to check with some
other towns and also to check on different plans available from BCBS. Using the
same plan, the new rates would cause an increase of almost $900 per month. There
was discussion about the city paying the difference between the existing deductible
and a higher one which would benefit the employee and still save the city money.

The clerk reminded the council that Donna Crawford will be at the next
meeting to talk about grants.

The clerk also informed the council that she has to take back some of what
she stated at an earlier meeting regarding minutes. The League attorney advised
her that she can give copies of "unapproved" minutes to those requesting them, but
the copy has to be marked "DRAFT" and the resident must understand that there
may be changes in the final approved minutes which is the official record of the
meeting. However, there are no rules about when the minutes have to be prepared,
other than before the next regular meeting. This means that copies do not have to
be available until they are ready for the meeting.

She reminded everyone that the city-wide garage sale is April 26, 2003.

COUNCILMEMBERCOMMENTS: There was discussion about several meetings for
councilmembers and mayors that the League has scheduled. It is a good thing for
all, but especially new members.

MAYOR'SREPORT: Mayor Young asked Bob Sisson about several things regarding
the pump houses, including the exhaust fan, keeping them clean and locked/ and
also the set-up for the AquaMag dispenser. He also had questions about the concrete
around well #2, the heater lights in well #2/ and having resistors installed at the
wells. Sisson said he would check into each of these matters soon.

The mayor also reminded the council that he would like to make some
changes with the ordinance regarding the sale of water to rural customers, or re-do it
completely. He would like to delete part of Section III that gives the council the
ability to grant exceptions to single-family services.



The lumberyard does not sell or give away yardsticks, so the mayor said he
will check into another option for measuring fish at the lake.

Mayor Young told the council that he had given the clerk permission to buy
Peachtree Accounting software at a very low price, almost free after rebates.

The mayor told Smith and Gates that they need to meet with Sisson and Call
again to talk about time-sheets, overtime and compensation time, preferably before
the next payday. He said that they need to understand that sick leave, vacation,
holidays, and comp time do not apply to hours worked, so they have to be deducted
from total hours paid to calculate overtime hours. There was discussion about the
possibility of changing the pay periods to better coincide with the work weeks.

There being no further business before the council, Jim Gates made a
motion to adjourn at 11:00 PM. David Gerisch seconded; meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

Cheryl Brown,
City Clerk

APPROVED:


